
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TENTH SESSION 
Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 63: 
Consideration, at the request of the Third Committee, 

of articles 4 to 11 of the draft convention on the 

Page 

nationality of married women (concluded) ......... ... 159 
Completion of Committee's work ........................ 159 

Chairman: Mr. Manfred LACHS (Poland). 

AGENDA ITEM 63 

Consideration, at the request of the Third Com-
mittee, of articles 4 to II of the draft convention 
on the nationality of married women (annex A 
of resolution 587 E (XX) of the Economic and 
Social Council, AjC.6j349, AjC.3jL.490 and 
Corr.I, A/C.6/L.372, AjC.6jL.374) (concluded) 

1. Mr. PETRZELKA (Czechoslovakia) said that he 
had voted in favour of the amended draft resolution 
( AjC.6jL.37 4 and L.376) because it respected the 
recommendations contained in General Assembly 
resolution 684 (VII). 
2. It would be unusual for two Committees to study, 
each on its own, part of a draft convention. Moreover, 
the Sixth Committee had not had sufficient time to ex-
amine eight articles with the care which they required 
in view of the exceptional importance of the question. 
Several of the articles in question would have to be 
amended because they were not fully in keeping either 
with the desired objectives or with the rules of 
international law. 
3. Mr. SURJOTJONDRO (Indonesia) said that, al-
though he had abstained from voting, it should not be 
inferred that his Government was indifferent to the 
problem to which the draft convention related. His 
delegation had followed the debates with the greatest 
interest, because its Government was at the moment 
drafting legislation relating to nationality which would 
define the status of married women. 
4. Mr. VENKATARAMAN (India) explained that, 
although he had abstained, his Government was entirely 
favourable to the principles underlying the draft con-
vention on the nationality of married women. The 
Indian Parliament was at the moment considering draft 
legislation relating to nationality, and the draft 
convention would be a valuable guide in its debates. 
5. Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) said that he had logic-
ally been compelled to abstain and to refrain from in-
fluencing the vote, as his Government had not yet been 
able to complete its thorough examination of the draft 
convention. 

159 

SIXTH COMMITTEE, 477th 
(CLOSING) MEETING 

Saturday, 10 December 1955, 
at 11 a.m. 

New York 

Completion of Committee's work 
6. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had 
exhausted its agenda. 
7. Mr. JAMIESON (Australia), speaking also on 
behalf of the Canadian, Indian, New Zealand, 
Pakistani and United Kingdom delegations, Mr. 
SURJOTJONDRO (Indonesia), Mr. TABIBI (Af-
ghanistan), Mr. STABELL (Norway), speaking also 
on behalf of the Danish and Swedish delegations, Mr. 
PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela), Mr. TREJOS (Costa 
Rica), Mr. HORVAT (Yugoslavia), Mr. MAURTUA 
(Peru), Mr. TARAZI (Syria), U MYINT TOON 
(Burma), Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics). Mr. RODIL MACHADO (Guatemala), 
Mr. BIHIN (Belgium), speaking also on behalf of 
the Nether lands and Luxembourg delegations, Mr. 
EL ERIAN (Egypt), Mr. PETRZELKA (Czechoslo-
vakia), Miss MANAS (Cuba), Mr. BROKENBURR 
(United States of America), Mr. CASTANEDA 
(Mexico), Mr. ROBINSON (Israel), Mr. GALVAN 
(Dominican Republic), Mr. CARPIO (Philippines), 
Mr. AL-KHATIB (Saudi Arabia), Mr. NADIM 
(Iran), Mr. SEPULVEDA (Chile), Mr. COLLINS 
(Liberia), Mr. MIRAS (Turkey), Mr. CANAL 
RIVAS (Colombia), Mr. GABRE-EGZY (Ethiopia), 
Mr. SERRANO GARCIA (El Salvador) and Mr. 
GALLEGOS (Ecuador) paid a tribute to the Chairman 
for the able way in which he had conducted the debates. 
Thanks to his impartiality and his calm, the debates had 
always been marked by that dignity which was rightly 
expected of the General Assembly's Legal Committee. 
Nurtured at the austere sources of the law, the eminent 
professor had, with admirable courtesy and humour, 
succeeded in creating a happy climate of mutual 
confidence in place of the severe requirements of 
procedure. 
8. They also congratulated the Vice-Chairman and the 
Rapporteur, whose eminent qualities reflected credit on 
the Committee, and they thanked the Legal Counsel, the 
Secretary of the Committee and other members of the 
Secretariat who had discharged their difficult duties 
successfully. 
9. Mr. TAMMES (Netherlands) (Rapporteur) asso-
ciated himself with the tribute paid to the Chairman, 
whose competence, authority and objectivity had made 
it possible to resolve so many delicate questions, and to 
the members of the Secretariat, whose help had been so 
valuable. 
10. He undertook to speak for his colleagues in thank-
ing the Chairman of the International Law Commission 
for the authoritative opinions which he had been kind 
enough to give to the Committee during the debates. 
11. He also thanked the Committee members for the 
compliments they had paid him. 
12. Mr. ALFONSIN (Uruguay) (Vice-Chairman) 
also associated himself with the tribute to the Chairman, 

AjC.6jSR.477 



160 General Assembly - Tenth Session - Sixth Committee 

the praise for the Rapporteur and the thanks for the 
members of the Secretariat. 
13. He also thanked the members of the Committee for 
their kind words concerning himself. 
14. The CHAIRMAN said he had endeavoured to 
assist the Committee in its work, which he could not 
have done without the help of the Vice-Chairman, the 
Rapporteur and the Secretariat staff. 
15. The members of the Committee had shown an ad-
mirable spirit of conciliation and justice during the de-
bates. The Committee had been true to its task and to 
its reputation. It was particularly gratifying that the 
Committee had not held itself incompetent to consider 

Printed in U.S.A. 

the Third Committee's request, because as the Legal 
Committee it had a special role and authority. It was to 
be hoped that the world would continue to call upon the 
jurists whenever delicate questions were at issue .. The 
Sixth Committee should endeavour to ensure that the 
legal principles on which the United Nations was 
founded were given increasingly wider application. 
16. He thanked the members of the Committee for the 
congratulations which had been addressed to him, and 
expressed the hope that they would be able to resume 
their work at the next session in an international atmos-
phere which would be even more favourable to the 
progress of the law. 

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m. 

S-77601-February 1956--1,800 



SALES AGENTS FOR UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS 

ARGENTINA 
Editorial Sudamericano S.A., Alsina 500, 
Buenos Aires. 
AUSTRALIA 
H. A. Goddard, 255a George St., Sydney; 
90 Queen St., Melbourne. 
Melbourne University Press, Carlton N.3, 
Victoria. 
AUSTRIA 
Gerold & Co., Graben 31, Wien, 1. 
B. Wullerstorff, Markus Sittikusstrasse 10, 
Salzburg. 
BELGIUM 
Agence el Messageries de Ia Presse S.A., 
14-22 rue du Persil, Bruxelles. 
W. H. Smith & Son, 71-75, boulevard 
Adolphe-Max, Bruxelles. 
BOLIVIA 
Libreria Selecciones, Casillo 972, La Paz. 
BRAZIL 
Livraria Agir, Rio de Janeiro, Sao Paulo 
and Bela Horizonte. 
CAMBODIA 
Papeterie-Librairie Nouvelle, Albert Par-
tail, 14 Avenue Boullache, Pnom-Penh. 
CANADA 
Ryerson Press, 299 Queen St. West, 
Toronto. 
CEYLON 
lake House Bookshop, The As.sociated 
Newspapers of Ceylon, ltd., P. 0. Box 
244, Colombo. 
CHILE 
Editorial del Pacifico, Ahumada 57, 
Santiago. 
Libreria Ivens, Casillo 205, Santiago. 
CHINA 
The World Book Co., ltd., 99 Chung 
King Road, 1st Section, Taipeh, Taiwan. 
The Commercial Press Ltd., 211 Honan 
Rd., Shanghai. 
COLOMBIA 
libreria America, Medellin. 
Libreria Buchholz Galeria, Bogota. 
Libreria Nacional ltda., Barranquilla. 
COSTA RICA 
Trejos Hermanas, Apartado 13"13, Son 
Jose. 
CUBA 
La Case Belga, O'Reilly 455, La Habana. 
CZECHOSLOVAKIA 
Ceskoslovensky Spisovatel, Narodni Trida 
9, Praha 1. 
DENMARK 
Einar Munksgaard, Ltd., Norregade 6, 
Kobenhavn, K. 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
Libreria Dominicana, Mercedes 49, Ciu-
dad Trujillo. 
ECUADOR 
Libreria Cientifica, Guayaquil and Quito. 
EGYPT 
Librairie "la Renaissance d'Egypte", 9 
Sh. Adly Pasha, Cairo. 
EL SALVADOR 
Manuel Navas y Cia., 1 a. Avenida sur 
37, San Salvador. 
FINLAND 
Akateeminen Kirjakauppa, 2 Keskuskatu, 
Helsinki. 

FRANCE 
Editions A. Pedone, 13, rue Soufflot, 
Paris V. 
GERMANY 
R. Eisenschmidt, Kaiserstrasse 49, Frank-
furt/ Main. 
Elwert & Meurer, Hcupstrasse 101, Berlin-
Schoneberg. 
Alexander Horn, SpiE!gelgasse 9, Wies-
baden. 
W. E. Saarbach, Gereonstrasse 25-29, 
Koln (22c). 
GREECE 
Kauffmann Bookshop, 28 Stadion Street, 
Athenes. 
GUATEMALA 
Sociedad Econ6mico Financiera, Edificio 
Briz. Despacho 207, 6a Av. 14-33, Zona 
1, Guatemala City. 
HAITI 
Librairie "A Ia Caravelle", Boite Postale 
111-B, Port-au-Prince. 
HONDURAS 
libreria Panamericona, Tegucigalpa. 

HONG KONG 
The Swindon Book Co., 25 Nathan Road, 
Kowloon. 
ICELAND 
Bokaverzlun Sigfusar Eymundssonar H. 
F., Austurstraeti 18, Reykjavik. 
INDIA 
Orient long mans, Calcutta, Bombay, Ma-
dras and New Delhi. 
Oxford Book & Stationery Co., New 
Delhi and Calcutta. 
P. Varadachary & Co., Madras. 
INDONESIA 
Pembangunan, ltd., Gunung Sahari 84, 
Djakarta. 
IRAN 
"Guity11

, 482 Avenue Ferdowsi, Teheran. 
IRAQ 
Mackenzie's Bookshop, Baghdad. 
ISRAEL 
Blumstein's Bookstores ltd., 35 Allenby 
Road, Tel-Aviv. 
ITALY 
Librerla Commissionaria Sansoni, Via 
Gina Capponi 26, Firenze. 
JAPAN 
Maruzen Company, ltd., 6 Tori-Nichome, 
Nihonbashi, Tokyo. 
LEBANON 
librairie Universelle, Beyrouth. 
LIBERIA 
J. Momolu Komara, Mor.rovia. 
LUXEMBOURG 
librairie J. Schummer, luxembourg. 

MEXICO 
Editorial Hermes S.A .. Ignacio Mariscal 
41, Mexico, D.F. 
NETHERLANDS 
N.Y. Martinus Nijhoff, lange Vaorhout 
9, 's-Gravenhage. 
NEW ZEALAND 
United Nations Association of New Zea-
land, C.P.O. 1011, Wellington. 
NORWAY 
Johan Grund! Tanum Forlag, Kr. Au· 
gustsgt. 7 A, Oslo. 

PAKISTAN 
The Pakistan Co-operative Book Society, 
Dacca, East Pakistan (and at Chittagong). 
Publishers United Ltd., lahore. 
Thomas & Thomas, Karachi, 3. 

PANAMA 
Jose Menendez, Plaza de Arango, Pan• 
a mO. 

PARAGUAY 
Agencia de Librerios de Salvador Nina, 
Calle Pte. Franco No. 39-43, Asuncion. 

PERU 
Libreria lnternacional del Peru, S.A., 
lima and Arequipa. 

PHILIPPINES 
Alemar's Book Store, 749 Rizal Avenue, 
Manila. 

PORTUGAL 
livroria Rodrigues, 186 Rua Aurea, lis· 
boa. 

SINGAPORE 
The City Book Store, ltd., Winchester 
House, Collyer Quay. 

SPAIN 
libreria Bosch, 11 Ronda Universidad, 
Barcelona. 
libreria Mundi-Prensa, lagasca 38, Ma-
drid. 

SWEDEN 
C. E. Fritze's Kungl. Hovbokhandel A-8, 
Fredsgatan 2, Stockholm. 

SWITZERLAND 
libroirie Poyot S.A., Lausanne, Gen8ve. 
Hans Raunhardt, Kirchgasse 17, Zurich 1. 

SYRIA 
librairie Universelle, Damas. 

THAILAND 
Pramuan Mit ltd., 55 Chakrawat Roac:l, 
Waf Tuk, Bangkok. 

TURKEY 
libroirie Hachette, 469 lstiklal Caddesi., 
Beyoglu, Istanbul. 

UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA 
Von Schaik's Bookstore (Pty.), ltd., Box 
724, Pretoria. 

UNITED KINGDOM 
H. M. Stationery Office, P.O. Box 569, 
london, S.E.l (and at H.M.S.O. shops). 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
International Documents Service, Colum· 
bia University Press, 2960 Broadway, 
New York 27, N. Y. 

URUGUAY 
Representaci6n de Editoriales, Prof. H. 
D'Eiia, Av. 18 de Julio 1333, Monte· 
video. 

VENEZUELA 
libreria del Este, Av. Miranda, No. 52, 
Edf. Galipan, Caracas. 

VIET-NAM 
Papeterie-librairie Nouvelle, Albert Por• 
tail, Boite Postale 283, Saigon. 

YUGOSLAVIA 
Cankarjeva Zalozba, Ljubljana, Slovenia. 
Dr>avno Preduzece, Jugoslovenska 
Knjiga, Terazije 27/11, Beograd. 

Orders and inquiries from countries where sales agents have not yet been appointed may be sent to: Safes and Circulation 
Section. United Nations, New Y<>rk, U.S.A.; or Sales Section, United Nations, Palais des Nations, Geneva, Switzerlanrl. 

Printed in U.S.A. Price: $U.S. 1.75; 12/6 stg.; Sw. fr. 7.50 
(or equiya1ent in other currencies) 

S-77(1()1-February 1956--500 




